
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

October 14, 2022  

RFP Title: Microsoft Office 365 Backup Solution 

Human Resources Management System Owner: County of Wake – Melissa England, Procurement 

RFP Bid No.:   #22-091 

  

The following items provide answers to questions that were submitted for RFP #22-091.  Wake County 
answers are in blue. 
 

1. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada) 

Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including any 
backups or copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 
2. Whether we need to come over there for meetings?   

Demonstrations and meetings will be conducted virtually. 

3. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada) 

Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including any 
backups or copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 

4. Can we submit the proposals via emails? 

 Responses for this RFP are not eligible for electronic submission. 

5. Should there be a third document listed for the Cost Proposal as Exhibit C?  

Refer to section 3.3.12 of the RFP: 3.3.12  Total Cost of Ownership (Proposal Exhibit C) 

Proposers should submit an estimate of project costs in the proposal. One-time implementation costs 
should be broken out from recurring license\hosting costs. If multiple pricing options are available (I.E., 
per user or total capacity) all options should be provided. Additionally, the County is requesting costs 
proposals for single and multi-year agreements. Costs should include all maintenance, support, hosting 
and ongoing software licensing or software subscriptions. 

The County reserves the right to contact proposers on cost and scope clarification at any time 
throughout the selection and negotiation process.  The County is asking proposers to estimate costs for 
all categories with the understanding that they may have to make assumptions. Such assumptions 
should be stated. 

The County may award a contract, based on initial offers received without discussion of such offers.  A 
proposer’s initial offer should, therefore, be based on the most favorable terms available. The County 
may, however, have discussion with those proposers that it deems in its discretion to fall within a 



competitive range. It may also request revised pricing offers from such proposers and make an award 
and/or conduct negotiations thereafter. 

Proposers are to provide cost estimates under separate cover/file as Exhibit C. 

6. Is the on-site support of 2 days post implementation mandatory, or can it be done remotely? 

Section 3.3.6 of the asks for the nature of the proposer’s post-implementation support; 2 days of on-site 
support after go-live is provided as an example. Proposers should document what they propose for post-
implementation support. 

7. What Office applications are in use that will require backup? 

Wake County does not want to limit solution evaluation to applications being used today but wants to 
evaluate full solution capabilities.  

8. What is the quantity of data currently consumed by each of the applications for backup Services are 
required (Please reply with TB per application)?  

 Exchange 30.3 TB 
 OneDrive 22.9 TB 
 SharePoint 2.5 TB 

9. What is the retention time required for the backups?  

We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine a retention requirement based on 
functionality. 

10. What is the backup frequency required? 

 We would like to understand backup frequency options for the solution before we make that decision.  

11. Is self-service restore a requirement?  

We want our Admins to be able to restore data, but not individual users.  

12. Is there currently a backup solution in place for O365? 

 There is no 3rd party solution currently in place.  

13. We are a privately-held company for which our audited financials are not open to the public and are 
confidential. In lieu of submitting audited financials, would a letter from our independent auditor attesting to 
the financial stability of our company be acceptable? This has been identified as an acceptable solution by 
other states with similar requirements.  

A letter from your independent auditor as to the financial stability of your company can be provided in lieu of 
audited financials. 

14. Are all sample documents required to be included in submission or would supporting links to 
documentation suffice the requirement to include?  

Supporting links may be provided instead of sample documents, but if provided links to do not direct to 
the specific document the bid will be considered nonresponsive for that section and will be evaluated 
accordingly. 

15. What type of Microsoft licenses does the County own? G3, G5?  

Licenses include a combination of M3, G1, Exchange Online Plan 2, Exchange Online Archiving. 



16. For Additional Users or Modules – is this asking that the fix cost will cover any additional units/users 
for M365 backup for the 12 months of the contract? Or is this asking for to list the unit/user cost if 
the County has additional users/units? 

 Asking for the unit/user cost if the County has additional users/units.  

17. Does the County require more than 3-year retention for its backup data? If yes, please provide 
desired retention length of backup data. 

 It is unlikely the County would retain backup data more than three years; however we would like to 
understand solution capabilities\limitations.  

18. Attachment B, Line 83: Can you elaborate on the ‘customer right to audit’?  

The provider shall permit the County the opportunity and not the obligation to perform an audit of 
the Provider’s data security policies, procedures, and operations.  

19. Attachment B, Line 71: The link for the county retention schedules does not seem to work. Is this 
the correct information? If not, do you have a validated link for the retention schedules? 

 General Records Schedule: Local Government Agencies | NC Archives (ncdcr.gov)  

20. Attachment B, Line 43: Does the county wish to backup Azure Active Directory as well as content 
within M365 workspaces? (ie Teams, Groups, Exchange, SharePoint, OneDrive) 

We are evaluating full functionality of solutions and all of the listed applications will potentially be 
backed up.  

21. Attachment B, Line 43: Can the county elaborate on ‘transaction history’ and ‘list of values’? 

 Transactional history = database transaction logs.  List of Values = any custom list of files, folder, or 
attributes to be included in backup procedures. 

22. Salesforce backup is listed in the general requirements exhibit – is this asking for exploratory 
information on the vendors capabilities for Salesforce or is Salesforce Backup a requirement for 
bidding vendor? 
 Currently, we are only asking for vendor capabilities for backing up Salesforce. It is not planned to 
be a part of this project.  
a. If Salesforce is a requirement: 

i. Include Salesforce Backup in overall fixed cost proposal?  
ii. How many Salesforce seats/users does Wake County have?  

23. Proposal Section 9 (3.3.9)  – Sample Documents 
a. Proposer asks for System Reports – is this a request for any example reports the solution can 

generate?  

Yes, please provide samples of the reports the solution can generate.  

24. How many M365 Tenants are in scope for this solution?  One. 

25. For each tenant, please specify Y/N for each of the following items.  
 Hybrid (Y/N) N 
 Multi-Geo (Y/N) N 
 Exchange Online (Y/N) Y 
 SharePoint Online (Y/N) Y 
 OneDrive (Y/N) Y 
 Teams (Y/N) Y 



 

26. On-premises services in scope for this solution: (y/n for services used) 

 Hybrid (Y/N) N 
 Exchange (Y/N) N 
 SharePoint (Y/N) N 

27. What is the Recovery Point Objective for Exchange? 

 We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine an RPO based on functionality. 

28. What is the Recovery Point Objective for OneDrive? 

 We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine an RPO based on functionality. 

29. What is the Recovery Point Objective for Teams? 

 We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine an RPO based on functionality. 

30. What is the Recovery Point Objective for OneDrive? 

 We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine an RPO based on functionality. 

31. Are users currently grouped in the organization? 

 Yes, Group membership is leveraged in O365 

32. Are Dynamic groups being utilized?  Yes 

33. Is Azure AD P1 or P2 licensing in use?  P1 

34. For each tenant, please list the following things. 
 What is the Exchange Online Tenant name? Wake County 

 How many Primary mailboxes will be protected? 5,302 

 How many archive mailboxes will be protected? 5 

 How many shared mailboxes will be protected? 710 

 How many OneDrive Users will be protected? 5,137 

35. For each tenant, please list the following things.  This can be obtained via the M365 Admin Portal 
using the 180-day trend. 

 What is the Exchange Online Tenant name? Wake County 
 For the 180 day period selected what is the 

o Starting size in GB for Exchange 26,100 
o Ending size in GB for Exchange 30,300 
o Growth in GB for Exchange 4,200 
o Starting size in GB for OneDrive 18,800 
o Ending size in GB for OneDrive 22,900 
o Growth in GB for OneDrive 4,100 
o Total number of SharePoint sites 1,067 
o Are Personal SharePoint sites in use (Y/N)  If so total number of sites? N 
o Starting size in GB for SharePoint 2,500 
o Ending size in GB for SharePoint 2,500 
o Growth in GB for SharePoint 0 
o Total number of Teams 355 

36. If you have Exchange On-Premises, please list the following things. N/A 



 What is the Exchange organization name? 
 How many Primary mailboxes will be protected? 
 How many archive mailboxes will be protected? 
 What is the current size in GB of the organization? 
 What is the daily growth rate in GB of the organization? 

37. If you have SharePoint On-Premises, please list the following things.  N/A 
 Name of the Farm  
 Total number of sites in the farm? 
 What is the current size in GB of the farm? 
 What is the daily growth rate in GB of the farm? 

38. Are security defaults enabled on the tenant? No 

39. Do conditional access policies restrict logins to M365 from only trusted locations? No 

40. Is ADFS in use? No 

41. Is MFA enabled for admin accounts? Yes 

42. Is joining Active Directory required? No 

43. Will data ever need to be restored from M365 to on-premises Exchange? No 

44. Does the organization have a "cloud-first" initiative?  

We evaluate both cloud and on-prem solutions in order to determine the best fit for the county. 

45. Do data sovereignty laws apply?   

Wake County requires that all data be stored, transmitted, or processed within the US, including any 
backups or copies stored for disaster recovery purposes. 

46. Will Veeam's APIs be leveraged for automation? 

We are evaluating functionality of solutions and will determine a need requirement based on 
available functionality. 

47. Will encryption at rest be used?  

We would like proposers to outline their capabilities to enforce encryption at rest for all backed up 
data. 

48. Will Auditing notifications be used?  

We would like to understand solution capabilities for auditing notifications. 

49. Will backup data need to be moved between repositories? 

 Unlikely, however we would like to understand solution capabilities\limitations. 

50. Is a "forever" retention required?  

We have a limited number of users where forever retention would be an option. We would like to 
understand the availability\limitations offered.  

51. Is there an intention / preference to store the backup data on-prem or in cloud storage? 

 Backup data should be stored in the cloud.  


